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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

  )  
In re: ) Chapter 11  
 )  
RESIDENTIAL CAPITAL, LLC, et al., ) Case No. 12-12020 (MG) 
 )  
   Debtors. ) (Jointly Administered) 
 ) 

DECLARATION OF HARRISON DENMAN IN SUPPORT OF AD HOC GROUP’S 
OBJECTION TO DEBTORS’ MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF RMBS TRUST 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS 

I, HARRISON DENMAN, declare as follows: 

1. I am an Associate with the firm of White & Case LLP, counsel for the Ad Hoc 

Group of Junior Secured Noteholders (the “Ad Hoc Group”).  I submit this 

declaration in support of the Ad Hoc Group’s Objection to the Debtors’ Motion for 

approval of the RMBS Trust Settlement Agreements. 
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2. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Marc D. Puntus on November 5, 2012.  

3. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Thomas Marano on November 12, 2012. 

4. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Mark Renzi on November 7, 2012. 

5. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 4 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

May 4, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00049082. 

6. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 5 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Timothy Devine on November 19, 2012. 

7. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 6 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail dated May 9, 

2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00049196.  

8. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 7 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of John Ruckdaschel on November 8, 2012. 

9. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 8 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

April 17, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00048956 – RC-9019_00048957. 

10. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 9 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Tammy Hamzephour on November 13, 2012. 

11. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 10 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

April 27, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00048974 – RC-9019_00048975.

12. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 11 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

May 2, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00049016 – RC-9019_00049017. 
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13. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 12 is a true and correct copy an e-mail dated May 8, 

2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00047906.  

14. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 13 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail dated May 9, 

2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00047942.  

15. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 14 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

April 23, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00061443.

16. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 15 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

May 6, 2012 bates stamped RC-9019_00060880 – RC-9019_00060881.  

17. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 16 is a true and correct copy of a presentation dated 

May 7, 2102, bates stamped RC-9019_00093296 – RC-9019_00093304. 

18. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 17 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of Jeffrey Cancellieri on November 14, 2012. 

19. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 18 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

May 12, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00050455 – RC-9019_00050456.

20. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 19 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

May 8, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00060931. 

21. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 20 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of John Mack on November 14, 2012. 

22. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 21 is a true and correct copy of the relevant pages of the 

transcript of the deposition of James Whitlinger on November 15, 2012. 

23. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 22 is a true and correct copy of a presentation dated 

May 9, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00093180 – RC-9109_00093183. 
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24. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 23 is a true and correct copy of minutes dated May 9, 

2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00054006 – RC-9019_00054007. 

25. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 24 is a true and correct copy of minutes dated May 13, 

2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00054008 – RC-9019_00054022. 

26. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 25 is a true and correct copy of an e-mail chain dated 

August 15, 2012, bates stamped RC-9019_00093188 – RC-9019_00093189. 

27. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 26 is a true and correct copy of an illustrative 

comparison of sample RMBS prospectus representations. 

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge, information, and belief. 

Dated: February 1, 2013 
 New York, New York 

       /s/ Harrison Denman
       Harrison Denman 
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1

          UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

-----------------------------------x

In Re:                                 Case No.

RESIDENTIAL CAPITAL, LLC, et. al,      12-12020(MG)

                Debtors.

-----------------------------------x

      VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION OF THOMAS MARANO

               New York, New York

               November 12, 2012

                  9:56 a.m.

Reported by:
ERICA L. RUGGIERI, RPR
JOB NO: 27645
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1

2

3

4                     November 12, 2012

5                     9:56 a.m.

6

7

8            Deposition of THOMAS MARANO,

9      held at the offices of Kramer, Levin,

10      Naftalis & Frankel, 1177 Avenue of the

11      Americas, New York, New York, pursuant

12      to Notice, before Erica L. Ruggieri,

13      Registered Professional Reporter and

14      Notary Public of the State of New

15      York.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12-12020-mg    Doc 2826-2    Filed 02/01/13    Entered 02/01/13 19:41:43    Exhibit 2   
 Pg 3 of 20



450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 500, New York, NY 10123  (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

17

1                THOMAS MARANO 

2  have been responsible for the overall

3  leadership and management of the debtors

4  and their nondebtor subsidiaries; is that

5  true?

6      A.    That is correct.

7      Q.    And you've been familiar with

8  the debtor's day-to-day operations, their

9  financial condition, their business

10  affairs and their books and records; is

11  that correct?

12      A.    Yes.

13      Q.    In addition to being ResCap's

14  CEO, you are also a member of the

15  company's board of directors, correct?

16      A.    Yes.

17      Q.    And, in fact, you are the

18  chairman of the board, right?

19      A.    Yes.

20      Q.    Between May of 2009 and the

21  petition date, which I believe is May 13,

22  2012, you also served as chief capital

23  markets officer and chief mortgage officer

24  of Ally Financial, Inc., correct?

25      A.    Yes.
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2      Q.    So for much of the time that you

3  had served as ResCap's CEO and chairman,

4  you have been an officer of AFI as well,

5  right?

6      A.    Yes.

7      Q.    Since becoming ResCap's CEO in

8  July of 2008, how have you been

9  compensated?

10      A.    I have been compensated in a

11  combination of cash and deferred cash and

12  TARP stock.

13      Q.    And under TARP, has there been a

14  cap on the amount of cash that you were

15  able to receive?

16      A.    Yes.

17      Q.    And when you say in noncash, is

18  that essentially stock or warrants of AFI?

19      A.    I would characterize it more as

20  salary, stock of AFI and incentive award

21  stock.

22      Q.    Okay.  Is it fair to say that

23  under your compensation structure, the

24  total amount of your compensation is tied

25  to the financial success of AFI?
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2            MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

3      form.

4      A.    Could you repeat the question.

5      Q.    Is it fair to say that under

6  your compensation structure, the total

7  amount of your compensation is tied to the

8  financial success of AFI?

9      A.    My compensation is actually tied

10  to my performance in my role as chief

11  markets capital officer and chief mortgage

12  officer; and that compensation is set and

13  established and approved by the management

14  of Ally, and it is ultimately approved by

15  the paymaster in TARP.

16      Q.    Are you saying that your

17  compensation bears no relationship to

18  AFI's financial performance?

19      A.    Broadly, if AFI does well, I'll

20  do well.  But AFI has a very large number

21  of components that affect their

22  profitability.

23      Q.    Okay.

24            MR. KAUFMAN:  This is the first

25      exhibit.  This is the last exhibit, I
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2  K&E would blame it on ResCap, meaning the

3  management of ResCap.  MoFo would blame it

4  on the management of Ally.

5            And I think what he was

6  referring to here is that we had poor

7  communication between the law firms and

8  their clients, and we needed to get it

9  clear and settled, in order to determine

10  what we were all going to try and do.

11      Q.    You recognized, didn't you, that

12  the interests of ResCap and AFI might be

13  potentially adverse?

14      A.    At times they were.

15      Q.    And so you knew that there

16  wasn't necessarily going to be a common

17  understanding between AFI and ResCap and

18  their respective counsel, right?

19      A.    Yeah.

20      Q.    In your response to

21  Mr. Carpenter, you said, "An observation.

22  ResCap repeatedly said DIP first and

23  stalking horse second, then 9019 third.

24  Ally tried repeatedly to make 9019 first."

25            Did I read that correctly?
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2      A.    Correct.

3      Q.    And by DIP, you were referring

4  to ResCap's lining up DIP financing for a

5  bankruptcy, right?

6      A.    Correct.

7      Q.    And by your reference to

8  stalking horse, you were talking about

9  lining up a stalking horse bidder for

10  ResCap's assets in a bankruptcy auction?

11      A.    Correct.

12      Q.    And the reference to 9019 was to

13  a settlement of claims in a bankruptcy

14  between ResCap and AFI, right?

15      A.    Correct.

16      Q.    And did you understand at the

17  time that any such settlement would

18  involve releases to AFI from both ResCap

19  itself and third-party claimants?

20      A.    Yes.

21      Q.    When you told Mr. Carpenter in

22  what order ResCap prioritized those three

23  matters, you were talking about your own

24  views?

25      A.    I was referring to the fact that
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2  the ResCap management team and board had

3  decided that if we needed to be prepared

4  for bankruptcy, we needed to have a DIP

5  first, because that would provide us with

6  the working capital we would need to

7  preserve value for the estate; that we

8  would also need a stalking horse bid so

9  that we could have some certainty as to

10  somebody potentially being able to buy us.

11            And I was not going to go down

12  the road of -- by the way, I wasn't

13  involved in it, but none of us were going

14  to go down the road, actively, of a 9019

15  settlement.  So that from our perspective,

16  ResCap's board and management had

17  concluded, get the liquidity you need to

18  live first, get a second -- get a stalking

19  horse bid second.

20            And we had outsourced or kind of

21  created a separate committee to deal with

22  the 9019 so that those of us running the

23  business could obtain the liquidity and

24  the stalking horse bid.  Which we did, and

25  that strategy worked.
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2      Q.    And according to your e-mail to

3  Mr. Mackey, that was something that ResCap

4  repeatedly said, right?

5      A.    Yes.

6      Q.    And you reminded Mr. Mackey that

7  Ally was the one that had repeatedly tried

8  to make the 9019 settlement its number one

9  priority, correct?

10      A.    Yes.

11      Q.    What was your understanding as

12  to why AFI prioritized the settlement with

13  ResCap over DIP financing and an asset

14  sale for ResCap?

15      A.    I don't know why they made it

16  their first priority.  But it wasn't

17  relevant to me, because my responsibility

18  was to make sure we could provide a soft

19  landing for this company and preserve

20  asset value for the estate.  I don't

21  really know why they tried to make it

22  their first priority.

23      Q.    I wasn't asking you to read

24  their minds.  But it was your

25  understanding, wasn't it, that AFI was
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2  interested in benefiting AFI and not

3  necessarily ResCap.  That's why it was

4  pressing for the 9019 settlement between

5  ResCap and Ally, right?

6            MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

7      form.

8      Q.    Isn't that what you knew?

9      A.    No.

10            MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

11      form.

12      Q.    Isn't that what you thought?

13      A.    I --

14            MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

15      form.

16      A.    I knew that they kept raising

17  this as an issue, and we kept saying, we

18  are not focused on it.  We are focused on

19  the DIP and the stalking horse bid.

20            MR. PRINCI:  Just give me a

21      chance to register an objection.

22            THE WITNESS:  Sure.

23            MR. PRINCI:  Thank you.

24            MR. KAUFMAN:  Let's mark as the

25      next exhibit an e-mail dated April 12,
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2  AFI, settling ResCap's claims against AFI,

3  right?

4      A.    Yes.

5      Q.    What was the board told about

6  that agreement at the May 9th meeting?

7      A.    Mr. Nashelsky gave the --

8            MR. PRINCI:  You can answer.

9            THE WITNESS:  I can say that?

10            MR. PRINCI:  Yeah.

11      A.    Mr. Nashelsky, basically gave a

12  summary of what Ally was willing to do as

13  part of a settlement agreement, whether it

14  was compensation or provide various forms

15  of support, to enable a soft landing in

16  bankruptcy.

17      Q.    What were the terms that were

18  reported to the board by Mr. Nashelsky or

19  yourself?

20      A.    There was discussion about

21  origination, being able to continue to

22  originate while in bankruptcy, which was

23  critical to enhancing the value of the

24  platform.  It put the platform in a

25  position where it would not be sold
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2  basically just on asset value, but it

3  would be sold on enterprise value, which

4  is clearly what we saw with the $3 billion

5  bid.

6            We also talked about dollar

7  amount of settlement.  And I believe there

8  may have been a small DIP that was going

9  to be provided as well for, to allow us to

10  continue to do Ginnie Mae originations.

11            And that DIP, sorry, for

12  clarification, that DIP was provided by

13  Ally, not related to the Barclays DIP.

14      Q.    What was the board told about

15  the AFI/ResCap settlement agreement?

16      A.    I believe Mr. Nashelsky shared

17  the terms of that settlement agreement

18  with the board, you know, the basic

19  details of it.

20      Q.    Was that the first time you had

21  heard the final details?

22      A.    It was not the first time that I

23  had heard of the settlement agreement.

24  I'm not sure if this was the final

25  agreement.
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2            I don't -- I'm not sure if we

3  had reached final agreement with Ally at

4  the time Mr. Nashelsky reported this.  I

5  can't tell from looking at this, if we

6  had.

7      Q.    Were those negotiations likewise

8  fluid, from your recollection?

9      A.    They were -- they were very

10  fluid.  And because I wasn't directly

11  involved in those settlement negotiations,

12  there were sometimes -- actually almost

13  all the time there were conversations

14  going on that I was not privy to until,

15  you know, we got to a final agreement.

16      Q.    Is it your recollection that as

17  of the time the May 9th agreement

18  occurred, and the board approved the RMBS

19  settlement, the final terms of the

20  agreement between AFI and ResCap had not

21  yet been fixed?

22      A.    Again, I'm telling you, I don't

23  recall they were.

24      Q.    You don't recall one way or

25  another?
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2      A.    At this point in time I believe

3  my obligations to Ally were not there.

4      Q.    And what's your basis for

5  understanding that you, as an officer and

6  director of ResCap LLC, owed fiduciary

7  duties to creditors' entities other than

8  ResCap LLC?

9      A.    My understanding was that I was

10  responsible for the ResCap legal entity

11  and all of its subsidiaries.  And so that

12  would have included RFC and GMAC.  And

13  again, I felt at this point in time I

14  really had no obligation to Ally

15  whatsoever.

16      Q.    And if there were a conflict

17  between what would benefit creditors of

18  ResCap LLC versus what would benefit

19  creditors of RFC, what was your

20  understanding as to how you were to

21  resolve that conflict?

22      A.    Well, I feel like the deals we

23  struck were for everybody.  And all of us,

24  not only ResCap, but all of its

25  subsidiaries got the same deal.  So I was
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2  focused on getting the same deal for

3  everybody.

4      Q.    Okay.  Can you answer my

5  question.  And maybe you just did.  But

6  just to make clear, what was your

7  understanding of what you were supposed to

8  do in the event of a conflict between what

9  would benefit creditors of ResCap LLC

10  versus what would benefit creditors, for

11  example, of RFC?

12      A.    I -- I never thought about it in

13  the context of a conflict.

14      Q.    Did you understand at the time

15  of the May 9th board meeting that there

16  were certain structures that might benefit

17  one group of creditors over another group

18  of creditors?

19            MR. PRINCI:  Objection.

20      References facts not in evidence but

21      you can answer if you understand the

22      question.

23      A.    I'm not sure I do follow.

24      Q.    Okay.  At the time of the

25  May 9th board meeting did you understand
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2  that ResCap LLC was committing itself to

3  pay anything in connection with the

4  proposed settlement?

5            MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

6      form.

7      A.    What -- with respect to the

8  settlement what I recall is trying to get

9  a global -- essentially buy global peace

10  for all the entities.  How any allocation

11  of monies would be, you know, chopped up,

12  I was not thinking about that.

13      Q.    At the time of the May 9th board

14  meeting did you understand that there was

15  even an assertion that ResCap LLC was a

16  potential, owed a potential claim to any

17  of the settling funds?

18      A.    I'm not sure I thought about it

19  in that context.

20      Q.    And so when the number was

21  reached, 8.7 billion, was it your

22  understanding that that 8.7 billion could

23  be asserted against every entity within

24  the ResCap enterprise?

25      A.    I believe that could have.  I
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2  wasn't really focused on it, you know,

3  other than to get everybody the same deal.

4      Q.    So getting back to this conflict

5  point.  Do you understand that as between

6  ResCap LLC and Residential Funding

7  Company, LLC, there might be a

8  disagreement between those two entities as

9  to who was the proper party to pay the

10  claim?

11      A.    Today or back then?

12      Q.    Back then.

13      A.    Again, I don't recall thinking

14  about it at the time.

15      Q.    Okay.  Who made the decision to

16  enter into the settlement on behalf of

17  Residential Funding Company, LLC?

18      A.    That would have been the

19  directors of that entity.

20      Q.    And how was that effectuated?

21      A.    You'd have to talk to those

22  directors.

23      Q.    And who were those directors?

24      A.    I believe you've got Steve Abreu

25  and -- and Jim Whitlinger,
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2  W-h-i-t-l-i-n-g-e-r.

3      Q.    And who acted on behalf of GMAC

4  Mortgage, LLC?

5      A.    I believe that was Steve Abreu

6  and Joe Pensabene, P-e-n-s-a-b-e-n-e.

7      Q.    And did you understand in

8  connection with the May 9th board meeting

9  that you were acting at all on behalf of

10  Residential Funding Company, LLC in a

11  legal capacity?

12            MR. PRINCI:  Objection.  Calls

13      for an expert opinion.

14            If you understand the question,

15      you can answer it.

16      A.    I'm not really sure what you

17  mean by a legal capacity.  I mean from a

18  fiduciary point of view I was trying to

19  settle for everybody, get the biggest deal

20  for the family.  How the mechanics of that

21  worked out I was not, you know, worried

22  about that detail.

23      Q.    I don't know if it has been

24  marked.  I apologize.  Let's mark this as

25  9019-62.
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2      respect to requests for documents you

3      believe are appropriate.

4            MR. SHORE:  Thank you.

5      Q.    Were you present at any

6  post-petition board meeting to discuss an

7  amendment to the settlement agreement or

8  any amendments to the settlement

9  agreement?

10      A.    Yeah, I was at one.  There was

11  one time where the agreement came in --

12  there was one board meeting where we

13  talked about an amendment to the

14  agreement.

15      Q.    Okay.  And then independent of

16  that one board meeting, that aside, has

17  there been any other post petition board

18  meeting at any ResCap entities as far as

19  you know to discuss the settlement

20  agreement?

21      A.    Not that I'm aware of.

22      Q.    So what do you recall about the

23  meeting with respect to the amendment?

24      A.    There -- there were actually a

25  couple of attempts to amend the agreement
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           SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

-----------------------------------x
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RESIDENTIAL CAPITAL, LLC, et. al,     12-12020(MG)

                      Debtors.

-----------------------------------x

       VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION OF TIMOTHY DEVINE

                New York, New York

                November 19, 2012

                   10:17 a.m.

Reported by:
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10     Levin, Naftalis & Frankel, 1177 Avenue

11     of the Americas, New York, New York,

12     pursuant to Notice, before Erica L.

13     Ruggieri, Registered Professional
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2 constitute.  But I don't know that.  It

3 would -- it would be impossible for me to

4 know that this was the exact attachment

5 that was on this e-mail.

6     Q.    You understood that the draft

7 settlement agreement and the draft PSA

8 were drafted together, right?

9           MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

10     form.

11     A.    I'm not sure I understand what

12 you mean by drafted together.

13     Q.    They were drafted in tandem at

14 or around the same time and they were

15 transmitted together?

16     A.    They were --

17           MR. PRINCI:  Objection as to

18     form.

19     A.    They were drafted at

20 approximately the same time, sure.

21     Q.    Okay.  And in fact Mr. Lee

22 circulated drafts at the same time, right?

23     A.    Correct.

24     Q.    Okay.  Had you asked Mr. Lee to

25 prepare these drafts?
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2     A.    One of the features of the

3 settlement agreement that ResCap entered

4 with Kathy Patrick and then the settlement

5 agreement or the plan support agreement

6 between AFI, the ResCap entities and Kathy

7 Patrick involved the amount of cash that

8 Ally would put into the estate.  That's

9 certainly correct.  There's no question

10 about that.

11     Q.    And you said there is no new

12 Ally money.  How did you know that?

13     A.    The question arose as to whether

14 or not Ally intended to put any additional

15 money into the Ally/ResCap settlement.

16 And the answer was no.

17     Q.    Who gave you that information?

18     A.    I don't recall who gave me that

19 information.

20     Q.    So somebody at AFI told you by

21 May 9th at 9:03 a.m. that Ally wasn't

22 going to put anything more into the pot?

23     A.    If by the pot you mean the Ally

24 and ResCap settlement agreement --

25     Q.    Yes.
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2 period from October forward?

3     A.    Well, we should probably be

4 careful with regard to what you mean by

5 representing.  The -- as I recall, the

6 first communication from Kathy Patrick

7 came in to Bill Solomon in his capacity as

8 general counsel of Ally Financial, Inc.

9 He responded by indicating to Ms. Patrick

10 that Ally Financial, Inc. did not have

11 exposure of the variety that she wanted to

12 talk about settling.  And referred her to

13 Tammy Hamzephour, general counsel for

14 ResCap.

15           What -- my participation in

16 connection with meeting with Ms. Patrick,

17 I think Mr. Sheeren was there at the first

18 meeting in Minnesota, I don't recall

19 exactly.  But in any event, I was there in

20 my capacity as chief counsel for

21 litigation for ResCap, given that

22 Ms. Patrick purported to represent clients

23 who purported to have rep and warrant

24 essentially contract claims against the

25 contracting parties, all of whom were
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  -----------------------------------x
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                    November 13, 2012
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2              MR. RAINS:  Objection, calls for

3        speculation.

4              MR. KAUFMAN:  I was just

5        following up on her testimony.

6        A.    I don't -- I don't know that I

7    would say likely, but it's certainly

8    possible that she communicated to Tim.

9        Q.    In the top e-mail of the exhibit

10    sent by Mr. Devine to Gary Lee and you,

11    Mr. Devine asks whether 11 a.m. would work

12    for the conversation he suggested and

13    summarized a discussion he had had with

14    Mr. Lee the day before, correct?

15        A.    Yes.  That's what it looks like.

16        Q.    And am I correct that you were

17    not a party to that discussion between

18    Mr. Devine and Mr. Lee that's referenced

19    in his e-mail?

20        A.    I don't know.  But probably not,

21    given the fact that there were two of us,

22    and he was telling me what happened in the

23    call.  So probably I wasn't there.

24        Q.    Okay.  Regarding that

25    discussion, Mr. Devine stated, "On KP next
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2    steps I don't think we should share dollar

3    range of potential AFI contribution (Gary

4    and I had discussed including some

5    figures)."

6              Do you see that?

7        A.    Yes.

8        Q.    Do you know what potential AFI

9    contribution Mr. Devine had discussed with

10    Mr. Lee during their conversation?

11        A.    No, I don't.

12        Q.    Nobody told you?

13        A.    If they did, I don't remember.

14        Q.    Mr. Devine went on to say, "I

15    think it's premature, given that business

16    has not got to a number yet.  Can always

17    share with her at next round of

18    discussion.  Would recommend we simply

19    indicate all the rest, the structure of

20    the proposed outcomes, the potential for

21    substantial contribution from AFI,

22    fragility of the goal, but clarity of

23    purpose for comprehensive third-party

24    releases, et cetera."

25              Do you see that?
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2        over each other.

3        Q.    I apologize.  Let me correct.

4    What Mr. Devine said in his 4:44 p.m.

5    e-mail, "Let's book Thursday 4 to 6 for

6    web meeting.  Only presentation material

7    will be the waterfall deck."  Correct?

8        A.    That's correct.

9        Q.    Do I understand correctly from

10    these e-mails that Mr. Devine was the one

11    who coordinated this next meeting with

12    Ms. Patrick?

13        A.    Yes.

14        Q.    Among those Mr. Devine copied on

15    his e-mails were Rick Cieri and Ray

16    Schrock, correct, right?

17        A.    Correct.

18        Q.    And both of them are partners at

19    Kirkland & Ellis, right?

20        A.    Yes.

21        Q.    And they represented AFI, didn't

22    they?

23        A.    Yes.

24        Q.    Was AFI negotiating the

25    settlement with Kathy Patrick?
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2        A.    They were negotiating to the

3    extent that if they were making a

4    contribution to us in a settlement

5    separately, they wanted third-party

6    releases from her.  So the two things were

7    related to each other somewhat.

8        Q.    They also wanted third-party

9    releases -- sorry, they also wanted

10    releases from ResCap, right?

11        A.    They wanted releases from ResCap

12    and they wanted third-party releases from

13    Kathy Patrick.

14        Q.    Okay.

15        A.    And others.

16              MR. KAUFMAN:  Let's mark as the

17        next exhibit an e-mail chain on

18        May 2nd and May 3, 2012.  Bates

19        numbers RC 9019_00049016 to 7.

20              (9019 Exhibit 82, e-mail chain

21        on May 2nd and May 3, 2012, Bates RC

22        9019_00049016 to 7, marked for

23        identification, as of this date.)

24        Q.    Feel free to take your time

25    reviewing this exhibit, Ms. Hamzephour.
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2        A.    No.

3        Q.    So when Mr. Lee said that

4    Ms. Patrick had proposed to support the

5    plan releases "Provided that Ally

6    contributes no less than X dollars in

7    cash," what did you understand that meant?

8        A.    Ally was looking for plan

9    support agreement from her clients that

10    would include third-party releases.  And

11    that she would support that at some level

12    contribution from Ally which had not yet

13    been determined.

14        Q.    In the top e-mail from

15    Mr. Devine he said, "Our notes match."  Do

16    you see that?

17        A.    Yes.

18        Q.    Do you know whether Mr. Devine

19    was on the call or meeting summarized in

20    Mr. Lee's e-mail?

21        A.    I don't know.

22        Q.    His comments suggest to you that

23    he was, doesn't it?

24              MR. RAINS:  Objection.  Calls

25        for speculation.
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2    20 percent of their allowed claim to

3    ResCap LLC.  This provision was added to

4    protect the investors in the event that a

5    larger than expected portion of the Ally

6    settlement proceeds is allocated to ResCap

7    LLC based on alter ego type claims (as

8    opposed to RFC and GMACM as we

9    anticipate)."

10              Do you see that?

11        A.    Yes.

12        Q.    That was a description of the

13    so-called Holdco election, wasn't it?

14        A.    Yes.

15        Q.    Was ResCap's board of directors

16    asked to consider and approve that

17    amendment to the RMBS trust settlement

18    agreement?

19        A.    I don't remember that there

20    were.

21        Q.    Weren't you the one who approved

22    that?

23        A.    I approved it -- I signed it

24    after discussing with counsel and

25    Mr. Marano.
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2    discussions about the board's fiduciary

3    obligations?

4        A.    Yes.

5        Q.    Are you familiar with a

6    gentleman by the name of Frank Sillman?

7        A.    No.

8        Q.    Okay.  Do you know if debtors

9    engaged any experts in connection with

10    evaluating or analyzing the RMBS

11    settlement in connection with the Rule

12    9019 motion?

13        A.    Yes.  We have experts.

14        Q.    Do you know if Mr. Sillman is

15    one of those experts?

16        A.    I don't recognize the name.

17        Q.    Okay.  Do you know if -- were

18    you involved in the expert engagement

19    process in connection with the Rule 9019

20    motion?

21        A.    No.

22        Q.    Who was involved with that?

23        A.    Morrison & Foerster.

24        Q.    Was anybody at ResCap consulted

25    with -- by Morrison & Foerster in
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2    Foerster.

3        Q.    And do you recall -- how did you

4    find out about what the experts were

5    working on?

6        A.    In conversations with counsel.

7        Q.    Have you read the report by

8    Fortis?

9        A.    No, I have not.

10        Q.    Do you think that was an

11    important thing for you to do in

12    connection with the Rule 9019 motion?

13        A.    No.

14        Q.    Why not?

15        A.    I just didn't think it was.

16        Q.    Do you know what Fortis

17    concluded in connection with their report?

18        A.    I didn't read the report.

19        Q.    I know.  I'm asking you a

20    different question.  Do you know what

21    their conclusions were?

22        A.    No, I don't know what their

23    conclusions were.

24        Q.    I'm just going to grab the pile

25    of exhibits in front of you.  I just want
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1

              UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

              SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

  -----------------------------------x

  In Re: Case No:

  RESIDENTIAL CAPITAL, LLC, et. al,     12-12020(MG)

                  Debtors.

  -----------------------------------x

          VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION OF JAMES WHITLINGER

                     New York, New York

                     November 15, 2012

                        9:39 a.m.

  Reported by:
  ERICA L. RUGGIERI, RPR
  JOB NO:  27649

12-12020-mg    Doc 2826-21    Filed 02/01/13    Entered 02/01/13 19:41:43    Exhibit 21  
  Pg 2 of 12



450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 500, New York, NY 10123  (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

2

1

2

3

4                      November 15, 2012

5                      9:39 a.m.

6

7

8             Deposition of JAMES WHITLINGER,

9       held at the offices of Kramer, Levin,

10       Naftalis & Frankel, 1177 Avenue of the

11       Americas, New York, New York, pursuant

12       to Notice, before Erica L. Ruggieri,

13       Registered Professional Reporter and

14       Notary Public of the State of New

15       York.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12-12020-mg    Doc 2826-21    Filed 02/01/13    Entered 02/01/13 19:41:43    Exhibit 21  
  Pg 3 of 12



450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 500, New York, NY 10123  (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

56

1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2        Q.    But you don't have a specific

3    recollection of discussing the board's

4    fiduciary duties during the half an hour

5    or so that the board discussed the

6    settlement agreement on May 9th?

7        A.    Yeah, I -- I don't recall

8    specific to that.

9        Q.    And on May 9th as a board member

10    when you were considering the settlement,

11    in your own words what was your

12    understanding of your fiduciary duty as a

13    ResCap board member in deciding whether to

14    approve the settlement agreement?

15        A.    Generally speaking, you know, as

16    a director we have a duty of care and duty

17    of loyalty to ResCap and all its

18    affiliates or subsidiaries.  And we needed

19    to consider all creditors when making any

20    decision that we would make at all, you

21    know, that that's part of that -- that

22    process.  So.

23        Q.    So you understood on May 9th

24    that you had a fiduciary duty of care and

25    loyalty -- loyalty to ResCap and all of
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1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2    its creditors during that meeting?

3        A.    Yes.  And to ResCap's

4    subsidiaries.

5        Q.    Just to be clear, your answer to

6    the question was "Yes.  And to ResCap's

7    subsidiaries"?

8        A.    Yes.

9        Q.    And did that fiduciary duty

10    extend to the creditors of not just ResCap

11    but also ResCap's subsidiaries?

12        A.    Yes.

13        Q.    If a conflict arose during the

14    May 9th board meeting between the best

15    interests of ResCap's different

16    subsidiaries or the different creditors of

17    those different subsidiaries, what was

18    your understanding of how the board was

19    supposed to resolve that conflict?

20              MR. RAINS:  I object to the

21        question on the grounds that it's a

22        hypothetical and it assumes facts not

23        in evidence and so it will cause you

24        to speculate.

25              If you can answer the question,
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1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2    dialogue had been occurring with parties.

3    So that process to further vet and discuss

4    how legal entities to your question would

5    be allocated was subsequent conversations

6    that took place and subsequent -- and

7    manifested in subsequent agreements.

8        Q.    So do I understand correctly

9    that on May 9th when the board approved

10    the settlement agreement it had not been

11    fully determined the extent to which any

12    of the $8.7 billion in claims would be

13    allowed against RFC or GMAC Mortgage or

14    ResCap itself, is that true?

15        A.    I don't recall the exact

16    conversation that we had but the maximum

17    claim across all entities at that point in

18    time was 8.7.  I think there were

19    presumably some beliefs that based on the

20    entity that did the issuance, the claims

21    would align potentially there.  And that's

22    what manifested itself in some other

23    conversations to try and get that more

24    definitive so that people understood where

25    would the claims be brought forth.
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1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2        Q.    And those conversations and the

3    sorting of that out occurred after

4    May 9th, right?

5        A.    Yes.

6        Q.    So on May 9th when the board

7    approved the settlement agreement, it did

8    not know the extent to which either RFC or

9    GMAC Mortgage or ResCap might have an

10    allowed claim, a portion of the

11    8.7 billion allowed claim against each of

12    those different entities?

13        A.    Again, in total 8.7 billion was

14    a claim.  All entities were released and,

15    you know, between the expert and

16    subsequent conversations how those claims

17    were allocated were -- were part of what

18    was being worked out.

19        Q.    Wasn't it important for you and

20    the board to -- to decide before you

21    approved the settlement agreement how

22    those claims would be allocated among the

23    different ResCap affiliates?

24        A.    I would tell you everything is

25    important on working out the $8.7 billion
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1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2    including Mr. Marano and Mr. Mack?

3        A.    No.

4        Q.    Before your deposition today did

5    you discuss with anyone what anyone else

6    had testified to in depositions in this

7    matter, including testimony by Mr. Marano

8    or Mr. Mack or Mr. Cancelliere?

9        A.    No.

10              MR. SIEGEL:  Let's take a break.

11              MR. RAINS:  All right.

12              THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  The time is

13        12:57 p.m. and we are off the record.

14              (Whereupon, there is a recess in

15        the proceedings.)

16              THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  The time is

17        1:08 p.m. and we are back on the

18        record.

19    EXAMINATION BY

20    MR. DENMAN:

21        Q.    Mr. Whitlinger, I'm Harrison

22    Denman from White & Case for the ad hoc

23    group of junior secured noteholders.

24    Earlier you mentioned you are both an

25    officer and a director for Residential
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1                 JAMES WHITLINGER

2    Capital LLC and for GMAC Mortgage LLC,

3    correct?

4        A.    Yes.

5        Q.    And do you also hold positions

6    at Residential Funding Company, LLC?

7        A.    Residential Funding I'm also a

8    board member and a chief financial officer

9    as Craig had asked.

10        Q.    Okay.  And can you identify the

11    other members of the board for GMAC

12    Mortgage?

13        A.    Steve Abreu and, you know, Joe

14    Pensabene, who is the head of our

15    servicing is currently a -- and is also a

16    board member.

17        Q.    And is the same individuals that

18    are members of the board of Residential

19    Funding Company?

20        A.    I believe it's only Steve Abreu

21    and myself for -- for RFC.

22        Q.    And earlier you said that you

23    don't recall there being any meetings of

24    the board of GMAC Mortgage with respect to

25    the RMBS settlement, correct?
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2        A.    Correct.

3        Q.    And do you recall if there were

4    any such meetings of the board by -- of

5    the board for Residential Funding Company?

6        A.    No.  I would say the same, I

7    don't recall.

8        Q.    Being that you are one of only

9    two, or in the case of GMAC Mortgage

10    three, directors for each entity you would

11    obviously -- your attendance would be

12    necessary for any board meeting of those

13    two entities, correct?

14        A.    Yes.

15        Q.    So it's safe to assume that your

16    not recalling means that those meetings

17    never occurred?

18              MR. RAINS:  Objection.

19        Misstates his testimony.

20        A.    I don't -- I don't recall having

21    a meeting and I don't believe we had a

22    separate meeting but I don't -- I don't

23    re- -- I don't recall.

24        Q.    Okay.  Now, you attended the

25    May 9th board meeting, correct?
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2        A.    Yes.

3        Q.    And that was a board meeting for

4    Residential Capital LLC, correct?

5        A.    Yes.

6        Q.    And your attendance there was in

7    your capacity as officer and director of

8    Residential Capital LLC, correct?

9        A.    Yes.  But I was also there with

10    respect to the plan support agreement that

11    all the debtor entities were listed as

12    part of the plan support agreement.  So --

13    so I was also considering the other

14    entities in my decision.

15        Q.    But only with respect to the

16    plan support agreement because that was

17    the agreement to which those entities were

18    parties?

19        A.    That's -- that's correct.

20        Q.    Was it customary for you to

21    attend a board meeting for one entity and

22    make decisions that related to the affairs

23    of another entity at that meeting?

24        A.    I would say this, you know,

25    generally speaking, because RFC and GMAC
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2    Mortgage are guarantors to many of the

3    facilities that we have that we're --

4    we're always thinking about all the -- the

5    entities that are -- that are subsidiaries

6    of the company.

7        Q.    So do those subsidiary entities

8    ever have board meetings?

9        A.    We do -- we do occasionally have

10    board meetings, you know, that -- that,

11    you know, that I would generalize as

12    things that are specific to that entity

13    for maybe a state licensing issue.

14        Q.    Okay.  Earlier you mentioned

15    that the $8.7 billion allowed claim --

16    well, let me put it different.

17              What was your understanding with

18    respect to the entities that would be

19    liable for the $8.7 billion claim as of

20    the May 9th?

21        A.    My understanding that at that

22    point in time all the entities were part

23    of the release and that the claim,

24    generally speaking, would be allocated

25    based on where the loans were at by the
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Outlook E-mail 

From: Lee, Gary S. 
Sent: 5/9/2012 2:38:'!4 PM 
To: John Mack (john_e_ma<:k@msn.com); Jonathan llany (jonathan@ilany.net); Pamela West 
(alemapew45@bellsouth.net); Abreu, Steve - PA; Ted Smith (efs345@gmall.com); Whitlinger, Jim - PA; Marano, Tom 
Cc: Hamzehpour, Tammy; Evans, Nllene R.; Tanenbaum, James R.; Nashelsky, Larren M.; Joe Moldovan 
(jmoldovan@morrisoncohen.com); Jack Levy (jlevy@morrisoncohen.com); David Lerner (dlemen@morrisoncohen.com); Connc>ly, 
Michael 
Subject: Meeting Notice- ResGlp Board Meeting, May 9, 2012, 3:00 pm (ET) - privileged and confidential attorney-client 
communication 
Attachments 080'\_00l.pdf 

From: Ellenburg, April A. [mailto:april.ellenburg@ally.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, May 09, 2012 2:08PM 
To: John Mack (john_e..;nack@msn.com); Jonathan Dany (ionathan@ilany.net); Pamela West (alemapew45@bellsouth.net); 
Abreu, Steve - PA; Ted Smith (efs34S@gmail.com); Whitlinger, Jim - PA; Marano, Tom 
Cc: Hamrehpour, Tammy; Evans, Nilene R.; Tanenbaum, James R.; Nashelsky, Larren M.; Lee, Gary S.; Joe Mc>dovan 
(jmt>dovan@morrisoncohen.com); Jack Levy (jlevy@rnorrisoncohen.com); David Lerner (dlerner@morrisoncohen.com); Connolly, 
Michael; Grzeskiewicz, Terry- PA; i<Jepchick, Dottie - PA; Shank, Jennifer- PA; Dillard, Thalia; Dicicco, Donna; Quenneville, cathy 
L.; Skover, Katherine M.; Taylor, Barbara N. 
Subject: Meeting Notice - ResGlp Board Meeting, May 9, 2012, 3:00 pm (ET) 
Importance; High 
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To: Lee, Gary S.; john_e_mack@msn.com; jonathan@ilany.net; alemapew45@bellsouth.net; efs345@gmail.com; Abreu, 
Steve- PA; Whitlingerl Jim~ PA; Marano, Tom; jmoldovan@morrisoncohen.com; mconnolly@morrlsoncohen.com; Hamzehpour, 
Tammy 
Cc: Tanenbaum, lames R.; Goren, Todd M. 
Subject: Re: RMBS Settlement Update 

-----Original Message ----­
From: Lee, Gary S. 
Sent: Wednesday, August 15, 2012 07:00PM 
To: 'john_e_mack@msn.com'; 'jonathan@llany.net'; 'alemapew45@bellsouth.net' i ;efs345@gmall.com'; 'Steve.abreu@gm 
acrescap.com'; 'jim.whitlinger@gmac:resc:ap.com'; 'tom.marano@ally.com'; 'jmoldovan@morrisoncohen.com'; 'mconnolly@ 
morrisoncohen.com'; 'tammy.hamzehpour@gmacrescap.com' 
Cc: Tanenbi!lum, James R.; Goren, Todd M. 
Subject; RMBS Settlement Update 

Gary S. Lee 
Morrison & Foerster LLP 
1290 Avenue Of the Americas 
New York, NY 10104~0050 
T. 212.468.8042 
F. 212.468.7900 
g~ee@mofo.com 

To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, Morrison & Foerster LLP Informs you that, if any advice 
concerning one or more U.S. Federal tax issues is contained In thls communication (including any attacttments), such advice 
is not Intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the Intemal 
Revenue Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending to e~nother pe.rty any transaction or matter addressed herein. 

CONFIDENTIAL- PROFESSIONALS' EYES ONLY RC-9019_00093188 
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For Information about this legend, go to 
http://www.mofo.com/Circular230/ 

This messa9e contains information which may be confrdential and privileged. Unless you are the addressee (or authorized to 
receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disdose to anyone i:he message or any Information contained In the 
message. lf you have received the message in error, please advise the sender by reply e-mail @mofo.com, and delete the 
message. 

CONFIDENTIAL- PROFESSIONALS' EYES ONLY RC-9019_00093189 
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PlJTBACK CLAIMS DISCLOSURES IN PERTINENT PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SECURITIES FRA(;O SUIT ALLEGATIONS 
--+---- ----t--

GMACM Commonly Ass~rt~d 
Hn:oches1 GMACM 2006~AR2 2006-Jl RAU 2007-QSS 

«Rcpre<entat•ons relating 
to comph~nce with Un­
derwnting Guidelines" 

"GMACM's under­
wntln<; stMdards 
with respect to the 
mortgage loans gen­
erally will conform 
to those published in 
GM.A.CM's under­
writing guidelines" 
(P S-39). 

''Rcprc.•entat1ons relatmg NIA 
to romphllll~~ With smte 
and fcderHI IHw" 

Same d1s- "All of the mortgage lonm m the 
closure as 1001tgage pool ~Wre originated tn 

at ldt (p a~ordance with the underwriting 
S-JJ) criteria of Residential Funding de-

NIA 

scribed under ' --The Program' in 
this prospecTIL~ supplement Resi­
dential funding will review e.ach 
mongage loan for comph!lflce with 
its underwriting ~tandards I'""' to 
purchase as descnbcd under 'The 
Trusts-UnderwritJng Policies­
Automated UndcrWJiting' 10 the 
prospectus~ (P S-43) 

NIA 

RASC 2006-KS9 FHFA Complaint' 

"Pnor to assignment to the dcpos- "The review of sample data ba:; ~on­
lim, Residential l'~mdmg Compa- fimwd, on a stallsticaJiy >~gn•ficant 
ny, LLC reviewed the underwrit" basis, Thai the Pro~pectus Supple" 
ing standard.~ for the mortgage ments contruncd matenal m•srepresen­
lo:llls :111d all of the mortgage loans tations wah respect to the underwriting 
were in substantial conformity standards employed by the onginators 
with the standards set forth m Res- 1 ... " {~ 94) 
•den!!al Fund1ng Company, LLC's 
Alter Net Program or are otherw~se 
in conformity wnb the ~t3lldards 
set forth m the descnpt•on of cred· 
it grades set forth in th•s prospec-
tus supplement." (P. S-56) 

---+---
"Ea~h mortgage Joan at the l1mc 11 N/A 
was made complied in all material 
re~p<Jcts with apphcahlc local, 
state and federal laws, Including, 
but not limned to. all applicable 
antii'redatory kndmg laws" (P. 
S·42) 

"As set fonh m more ~etad m 
paragraphs 4J to 2tH above, the 
pubhc statement> of the Sponsor. 
Vcpnsuoro. an~ Underwrite ... 
mduduog m the Off~ring Maten­
als. wt:le matenally false and n!ls­
lcadmg becau<e. among other 
thmgs. the-y n11srepresented the 
unQ~rwflttng ~t;mdards applied tn 
rhe mortgage loans backmg the 
Cerl!l"lc"tt~S . "(~HI) 

NIA 

Per Supplememal DeciiiiatJOn ofJeffery A. Lipps dated Sept~mber 28, 2012, par. l6 (E><hibTt F to Debtors' Federal R11lc oJ" Civil Procedure 26(A){2) Expe1t Disclosures, D:lcket #16&4) 

Complamt dated Scpt~mber 2, 2011, ftled m Fed. Housim• Fmauc~ Agency v Ally FinMclal rt z\ (Sup Ct NY) 

Complaint dat<:d Fehruary 9, 2011 filed in Mass ,Mutuall.lfc In~ Co v Residen.ti~l fund•m• Co et al ( D.Mass.) 
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PUTBACK CLAIMS DISCLOSURES IN PF.RTINENT PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SECURITIES FRAUD St:IT ALLI::GATIONS 
----t--·-------t--­

Commonly A%~rled --~MACM 
CMACM 2006-ARZ j -2006-JI RALI2007-QSS RASC 2006-KS9 FIIFA Complaint' .VIn~sMutmtl t:nmplnint' 

--

Un•.JOfhe; 1 

t---------+-------+----t------~~--t-----------+-------~--~------~----
"R~presentations relating 
to the accuracy of Loon­
to-Value (LTV) or lom­
btned Loan-to-Valu~ 
(CL TV} inforrnannn·· 

Prosp.:~1us supple- Same as at Same as at left (p 1-6) Same as at left (p ll-26) "The data rcvJcw has further revealed "A~ <Ct fUt1h m mor~ det~Jl m 
men\ contams a table left(PDF p that the LTV rat•us dtodosed in the paragraphs 43 to 203 above, the 
showing th~ L TVs of lOS) Prospectus Supplements were material- publ1~ stal~rn<!nts of the Sponwr. 
the pool's mortgage ly false and understated, as more spc- Depositors, and LJndcrv.-ntcrs. 
loans by category (p ctf1cally ~~tout below." ~ 99) includmg in the Offering M~len-
1-3) als, were matenally fals~ 3nd m!S­

lead"tng beUJu<~. among other 
thmgs. they mtsrepresented the 
L"IV m!Urmanon for the loam 

.. (~ 222) 

-·----+----+---+ ----- -----t---------+- -------
"Representation< relating NIA NIA N/A 
to appraisals 01 d•e qul!h-
lications of appra1~ers'' 

"Represenlatlons relating 
to the accuracy of Own­
er/Occupancy mfOr­
macion' 

Prospectus supple- Same as at Same a• atlef"t (p 1-1 ). 
ment contains o L1ble left (PDF p. 
showing the occu- 106} 
pancy statu' of the 
pool'~ mOJtgage 

"The adequacy of a mortgaged "These misrepresemalions w1th respe.;t 
p10perty as security for repayment to reported LTV rat•os also demon­
of the related mortgage loan gen- strate that the representatwns m the 
erally has been determn>cd by an Registracion Sta!cmcnts relating to ap­
appnusal tn accordance wah pre- praisal practices were false, and that 
established apprmsal procedure the appraisers. "' many Instances, fur­
gutdelines for appraisals estab- nishcd appraisab that they understood 
lished by or acceptable to the orig· were inac~urate and that they knew 
1nator. Appraisers wen: either staff bore no reasonable relationship to d>c 
appra~sers employed by the ongi- actual value of thu underlying proper­
nator or independent appra1sers ties··(~ 104) 
selected in accordance wilh pre-
established guidelines estabhshed 
by the originator." (P S-58} 

Same as a\ !eft (p.ll-28) "'The data rev1cw has revealed that the 
owner-occupancy sta.tl~1tCS reponed in 
the Prospcctu; Supplements were ma­
terially false and inflated. Indeed, the 
Prospectus Supplements overrcp01ted 

""These reprc.<Cillallons regard1ng 
appraiSalS wcr~ m~tenal to 
Ma.>sMutual and other investor.< 
hccausc they Signaled the r~habll­
lty nf 11>~ LTV r~tios dtMu~sed 

alxw" MassMutual's fnrcn<lc 
rcv1ew r~vea!ed that these rctnc­
sentallons v..-ert: false ·· (~ 77) 

"Th""c re<uhs nm only demon­
strate that th" Juan statistiCS in tbc 
Offermg M•tenals were false, but 
al•o that the representations relut­
mg to appratsal pract1ces ~~~ 
false lndepend"nt apprmscr< flll· 
IOWlng proper practices WCluld nut 
systematically generate app""""ls 
that deviate so stgmflcantly front 
the true v~lucs of the appra1s~d 
properties."' (1 ?M) 

"As dcscnbed more fully 1n Sec­
liOn VI B below. the n::sult~ uf 
MassMutual"s loan-lcvd analy"s 
of lllle owneHlCcupancy •at"" on 
the mo11.gage !nons undcrlymg tts 
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PUT BACK CLAIMS DISCLOSURES IN PERTINENT PROSPI£CTUS SUPPLEMENT SECURITIES FRAUD SUIT ALLF.GA'IIONS 
1----- -+----~-

Commonly Assff'tcd GMACM 
Breaches' GMACM 2006-AR2 2006-J\ 

loans by category (p 
1-4). 

"Representation> mi~Jing N/A 
to the complct(:!IC>' of 
Loan Files" 

N/A 

RALI 2007-QSS 

N/A N/A 

--+--- -----
RASC 21JIJ6-KS9 MassMutul'l Complaint' 

[sic] the numb~r of underlying proper" Ccn.ticates show that despite the 
ties that were oc~up1ed by their owners, prospectus representations, " 
and undcHeported the number of un- 111uch hi~her percentage nf hnr­
dcrlying projX'rties held as s~com.l ruw~rs did not occupy ~lC mort­
howes or investment propertic> "(1 9.~) ga~ed properties than wa~ r~poe-

senled" (~ I ~5) 
----

N/A 

~---r---~-~------4-----+------r------
"Rcprc,enlallons relating Prospectus ~upple- Same as at Same as all eft (be&~ns at p. 1-1) Same as at left (hegm~ at p Il-l) NIA NfA 
to the accuracy of loan mcnt cunlams an left (begins 
mformation on the Moot- extens1ve summary at PDF p 
gage Loan Schedule or of the Mortgage 10.1) 
loan tapes pmvodcd m Lo311 Schedul~ (he-
connection with the sccu- ~:ins at p. 1-1) 
rttizatiun" 
'----------
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